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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $125 at March 31, 2009
and $128 at December 31, 2008
Deferred tax assets
Income tax receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $29,040 at March 31, 2009 and $27,727 at December 31, 2008
Goodwill
Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Accrued employee cost
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 15,000,000 shares authorized, none issued
Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized, 29,095,045 shares issued and outstanding as of

March 31, 2009 and 29,054,145 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2008
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Less: 244,016 shares as of March 31, 2009 and 237,080 shares as of December 31, 2008,
held in treasury, at cost

Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes

3

March 31, December 31,
2009 2008
$106,595  $ 112,174

153 153
31,888 33,714
4,084 3,401
2,170 2,033
3,948 6,402
148,838 157,877
24,023 24,518
17,557 17,557
2,380 3,047
9,745 8,970
$202,543  $ 211,969
$ 1,894 $ 3,371
2,911 2,961
7,383 14,725
17,069 18,011
29,257 39,068
2,109 1,569
31,366 40,637
29 29
118,226 116,676
72,904 70,021
(19,034) (14,491)
172,125 172,235
(948) (903)
171,177 171,332
$202,543 $ 211,969
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Revenues

Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation and amortization)

Gross profit
Operating expenses:
General and administrative expenses
Selling and marketing expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Other income/(expense):
Foreign exchange gain/(loss)
Interest and other income, net
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Income tax provision/(benefit)
Income from continuing operations
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes
Net income to common stockholders
Earnings per share(a):
Basic:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Diluted:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

(Unaudited)

Weighted-average number of shares used in computing earnings per share:

Basic
Diluted

(a) Per share amounts may not foot due to rounding.

See accompanying notes

4

Three months ended

March 31,

2009 2008
40,986 $ 44,431
24,356 28,634
16,630 15,797

6,733 8,374
3,184 2,374
2,430 2,515
12,347 13,263
4,283 2,534
(1,309) 1,614

311 536

3,285 4,684
263 (31)

3,022 4,715
(139) 2,085

2,883 $ 6,800

0.10 $ 0.16

— 0.07

0.10 $ 0.24

0.10 $ 0.16

— 0.07

0.10 $ 0.23
28,843,190 28,757,077
29,079,675 29,292,838
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

(Unaudited)
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred stock compensation and other non-cash compensation
Non employee stock options
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/loss
Deferred income taxes
Change in operating assets and liabilities (net of effect of acquisitions):
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued employee cost
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Income taxes payable
Other assets and liabilities
Net cash used for operating activities - continuing operations
Net cash provided by operating activities - discontinued operations
Net cash used for operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets
Business acquisition
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations
Net cash used for investing activities - continuing operations
Net cash used for investing activities - discontinued operations
Net cash used for investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on capital lease obligations
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Acquisition of treasury stock
Net cash provided by/(used for) financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period (includes $804 at January 1, 2008
for discontinued operations)
Less cash and equivalents of discontinued operations, end of period
Cash and equivalents of continuing operations, end of period

See accompanying notes
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Three months ended

March 31,
2009 2008
$ 2,883 $ 6,800
(139) 2,085
2,430 2,515
1,539 988
71 74
(373) (602)
(758) (92)
2,491 (7,605)
(698) 3,115
67 (943)
(7,545) (5,338)
(2,249) (465)
(36) (1,523)
799 (4,690)
(1,240) (9,851)
— 1,841
(1,240) (8,010)
(5,013) (6,817)
— (1,696)
1,448 —
(3,565) (8,513)
— (36)
(3,565) (8,549)
(27) =
— 30
(45) (13)
(72) 17
(702) 7
(5,579)  (16,535)
112,174 102,210
— 683
$106,595 $ 84,992
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2009
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. Organization and Basis of Presentation
Organization

ExlService Holdings, Inc. (“ExIService Holdings™) is organized as a corporation under the laws of the state of Delaware. ExlService Holdings, together
with its subsidiaries ExlService.com, Inc. (“Exl Inc.”), ExIService Philippines, Inc. (“Exl Philippines”), exlService.com (India) Private Limited (“Exl India”), ExI
Support Services Pvt. Ltd. (“ESSPL”), ExlService (U.K.) Limited (“Exl UK”), ExlService Mauritius Limited (“Ex] Mauritius”), ExIService SEZ BPO Solutions
Private Limited (“Ex] SEZ BPO”) and Inductis Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries (“Inductis”), including Inductis LLC (“Inductis LLC”), Inductis India
Private Limited (“Inductis India”) and Inductis (Singapore) Pte Limited (“Inductis Singapore”) (collectively, the “Company”), is a leading provider of outsourcing
services and transformation services. The Company’s clients are located principally in the United States and the United Kingdom.

Basis of Presentation

The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for interim
financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and
footnotes required by generally accepted accounting principles for annual financial statements and therefore should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008.

The unaudited interim consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments (of a normal and recurring nature) which management considers necessary
for a fair presentation of such statements for these periods. The consolidated statements of income for the interim periods presented are not necessarily indicative
of the results for the full year or for any subsequent period.

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified in the consolidated financial statements to conform to the 2009 presentation. These reclassifications
reflect the presentation of discontinued operations of Noida Customer Operations Private Limited (“NCOP”), previously included in the outsourcing services
segment. On August 11, 2008, the Company completed the sale of all of its shares of NCOP to Aviva Global Services Singapore Pte Ltd. (see Note 16).

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The unaudited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of ExlService Holdings and its subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the consolidated statements of income during the reporting period. Estimates are based upon management’s best assessment of the
current business environment. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The significant estimates and assumptions that affect the financial statements
include, but are not limited to, allowance for doubtful accounts, future obligations under employee benefit plans, income tax valuation allowances and tax
reserves, stock-based compensation expense, depreciation and amortization periods, recoverability of long-term assets including goodwill and intangibles, and
estimates to complete fixed price contracts.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (‘FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations” (“SFAS No. 141
(revised 2007)”). SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) changes the accounting for business combinations including the measurement of acquirer shares issued in
consideration for a business combination, the recognition of contingent consideration, the accounting for pre-acquisition gain and loss contingencies, the
recognition of capitalized in-process research and development, the accounting for acquisition-related restructuring cost accruals, the treatment of acquisition-
related transaction costs and the recognition of changes in the acquirer’s income tax valuation allowance. SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008, with early adoption prohibited. The impact of SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements will depend on the size and nature of any acquisitions on or after January 1, 2009.

6
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

March 31, 2009
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

In February 2008, the FASB issued Financial Staff Positions (“FSP”) SFAS 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157 (“FSP 157-2”), which delays
the effective date of SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurement (“SFAS No. 157”), for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). FSP 157-2 partially defers the effective date of SFAS
No. 157 to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years for items within the scope of FSP 157-2. The
implementation of FSP 157-2 for non financial assets and financial liabilities, effective January 1, 2009, did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities—an amendment of FASB Statement No.
133” (“SFAS No. 161”). SFAS No. 161 amends and expands the disclosures required by SFAS No. 133 so that they provide an enhanced understanding of how
and why an entity uses derivative instruments, how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 and its related
interpretations and how derivative instruments affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. SFAS No. 161 encourages, but does not
require, comparative disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption. SFAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim
periods beginning after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. The Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 161, effective January 1, 2009, did not
have a material impact on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. See Note 6 on Derivative Financial Instruments.

In April 2009, the FASB issued three Staff Positions that are intended to provide additional application guidance and enhance disclosures about fair value
measurements and impairments of securities. FSP FAS 157-4 clarifies the objective and method of fair value measurement when there has been a significant
decrease in market activity for the asset being measured. FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 establishes a new model for measuring other-than-temporary
impairments for debt securities, including establishing criteria for when to recognize a write-down through earnings versus other comprehensive income. FSP
FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 expands the fair value disclosures required for all financial instruments within the scope of SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair
Value of Financial Instruments”, to interim periods. These FSPs are effective for periods ending after June 15, 2009. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact that these standards will have on its financial statements.

3. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during each period and diluted earnings per share is computed by using the weighted average number of common shares plus the potentially dilutive effect of
stock options, restricted stock, and restricted stock units issued and outstanding at the reporting date. Stock options, restricted stock, and restricted stock units that
are anti-dilutive are excluded from the computation of weighted average shares outstanding.

For the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, the weighted average number of shares used in calculating the diluted earnings per share includes
stock options, restricted stock, and restricted stock units for 236,485 shares and 535,761 shares, respectively.

The calculation of earnings per share for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 excludes stock options, restricted stock, and restricted stock
units for 3,103,074 shares and 961,200 shares, respectively, as their effect would have been anti-dilutive.

4. Segment Information

Effective April 1, 2008, we modified our reportable segments to reflect a change in the operating segments of our business to outsourcing services and
transformation services. Prior period information below has been updated to reflect the change. The Outsourcing Services segment is comprised of the former
Business Process Outsourcing segment excluding operations and process excellence services (formerly known as process advisory services). The Transformation
Services segment is comprised of decision analytics services (formerly known as research and analytics services), risk and financial management services
(formerly known as risk advisory services) and operations and process excellence services.

The Company is organized around its Outsourcing Services and Transformation Services segments. The chief operating decision maker generally reviews
financial information at the consolidated statement of income level but does not review any information except for revenues and cost of revenues of the individual
segments. Therefore, the Company does not allocate or evaluate depreciation, amortization, interest expense or income, capital expenditures, and income taxes to
its operating segments. Consequently, it is not practical to show assets, capital expenditures, depreciation or amortization by segment.

7
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
March 31, 2009

(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Revenues and cost of revenues for each of the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 for Outsourcing Services and Transformation Services
segments, respectively, are as follows:

Three months ended March 31, 2009 Three months ended March 31, 2008
Outsourcing Transformation Outsourcing Transformation
Services Services Total Services Services Total
Revenues $ 33,393 $ 7,593 $40,986 $ 34,917 $ 9,514 $44,431
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation and amortization) 18,261 6,095 24,356 22,605 6,029 28,634
Gross profit $ 15,132 $ 1,498 $16,630 $ 12,312 $ 3,485 $15,797
Operating expenses 12,347 13,263
Other income/(expense) (998) 2,150
Income tax provision/(benefit) 263 (31)
Income from continuing operations 3,022 4,715
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes (139) 2,085
Net income to common stockholders $ 2,883 $ 6,800

5. Fair Value Measurements

SFAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received upon sale of an asset or paid upon transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date and in the principal or most advantageous market for that asset or liability. The fair value should be calculated based
on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, not on assumptions specific to the entity. In addition, the fair value of liabilities
should include consideration of non-performance risk, including the Company’s own credit risk.

SFAS 157 establishes a three-level hierarchy of fair value measurements based on whether the inputs to those measurements are observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the Company’s market assumptions.
The fair-value hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when available and consists of the following levels:

* Level 1 — Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets;

*  Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and
model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs are observable in active markets; and

*  Level 3 — Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant inputs are unobservable.

The following table sets forth the Company’s assets and liabilities that were accounted for at fair value as of March 31, 2009. The table excludes short-term
investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses for which fair values approximate their carrying amounts.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Money market and mutual funds $98,484 $ — $— $98,484
Derivative financial instruments — 67 — 67
Total $98,484 $ 67 $— $98,551
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments $ — $8,733 $ — $ 8,733

Derivative Financial Instruments. The Company’s derivative financial instruments consist of foreign currency forward exchange contracts. Fair values for
derivative financial instruments are based on broker quotations and are classified as Level 2. See Note 6 for further details on derivative financial instruments.

8
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

March 31, 2009
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

6. Derivative Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company actively looks to mitigate the exposure of foreign currency market risk by entering into various hedging
instruments, authorized under Company policies, with counterparties that are highly rated financial institutions. The Company’s primary exchange rate exposure
is to the U.K. pound sterling and the Indian rupee. The Company uses derivative instruments for the purpose of mitigating the underlying exposure from foreign
currency fluctuation risks associated with forecasted transactions denominated in certain foreign currencies and to minimize earnings and cash flow volatility
associated with changes in foreign currency exchange rates, and not for speculative trading purposes.

The Company hedges anticipated transactions that are subject to foreign exchange exposure with foreign currency exchange contracts that are designated
effective and that qualify as cash flow hedges under SFAS No. 133. Changes in the fair value of these cash flow hedges which are deemed effective, are recorded
in accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) (“AOCI”) until the contract is settled and at that time are recognized in the unaudited consolidated statements
of income. Changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges deemed ineffective are recognized in the unaudited consolidated statement of income and are included in
foreign exchange gain/(loss).

The Company also uses derivatives consisting of foreign currency exchange contracts not designated as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133 to hedge
intercompany balances and other monetary assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency. Changes in the fair value of these
derivatives are recognized in the unaudited consolidated statement of income and are included in foreign exchange gain/(loss).

The Company evaluates hedge effectiveness at the time a contract is entered into as well as on an ongoing basis. If during this time, a contract is deemed
ineffective, the change in the fair value is recorded in other income in the consolidated statements of income. For hedge relationships discontinued because the
forecasted transaction is not expected to occur by the end of the originally specified period, any related derivative amounts recorded in equity are reclassified to
earnings. No significant amounts of gains or losses were reclassified from AOCI into earnings as a result of forecasted transactions that failed to occur for the
three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008.

The Company had outstanding foreign exchange contracts totaling $94,291 and GBP23,600 as of March 31, 2009 and totaling $110,182 and GBP30,320 as
of December 31, 2008. The Company estimates that approximately $7,414 of net derivative losses included in AOCI could be reclassified into earnings within the
next 12 months based on exchange rates prevailing as of March 31, 2009. At March 31, 2009, the maximum outstanding term of derivative instruments that hedge
forecasted transactions was 31 months.

The following tables set forth the fair value of derivative instruments included in the consolidated balance sheets as on March 31, 2009 and December 31,
2008:

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133:

March 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Accrued expense and other current liabilities:
Foreign currency exchange contracts $ 7,355 $ 5411
Non-current liabilities:
Foreign currency exchange contracts $ 1,378 $ 770
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments under SFAS No. 133:
March 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Prepaid and other current assets :
Foreign currency exchange contracts $ 67 $ —
Accrued expense and other current liabilities:
Foreign currency exchange contracts $ — $ 223
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

March 31, 2009
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

The following tables set forth the effect of foreign currency exchange contracts on the consolidated statements of income for the three months ended
March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Location of Gain or
(Loss) Recognized

in Income on Amount of Gain or

(Loss) Recognized in

Derivati

Amount of szlin or Location of Gain Amount of (';f:lil'l or (Ineffeec:li:]/: ;":)ertion Incume'un Deriyative

(Loss) Recognized in or (Loss) (Loss) Reclassified from and Amount (Ineffective Portion and

AOCI on Deriv.:-.ltive Reclassified from AOCI i.nto Inc?me Excluded from Amoun.t Excluded .from
Derivatives in SFAS No. 133 Cash Flow (Effective Portion) AOCI into Income (Effective Portion) Effectiveness Effectiveness Testing)
Hedging Relationships 2009 2008 (Effective Portion) 2009 2008 Testing) 2009 2008

Foreign exchange Foreign exchange
Foreign exchange contracts $(3,926) $(2,107) gain/(loss) $ (1,415) $ 1,828 gain/(loss) $ (420 $ (237)
Amount of Gain or (Loss) Recognized

Derivatives not Designated as Hedging Location of Gain or (Loss) Recognized in in Income on Derivatives
Instrument under SFAS No. 133 Income on Derivatives 2009 2008
Foreign exchange contracts Foreign exchange gain/(loss) $ (469) $ —

7. Comprehensive Income/(Loss):

The following table sets forth the components of comprehensive income/(loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008:

Three months ended

March 31,
2009 2008
Net income available to common stockholders $ 2,883 $ 6,800
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Unrealized gain/(loss) on effective cash flow hedges (2,511) (3,935)
Foreign currency translation adjustment (2,058) (741)
Retirement benefits 26 (11)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) (4,543) (4,687)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) $(1,660) $ 2,113

10
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
March 31, 2009
(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

8. Capital Structure

The Company has one class of common stock outstanding.

During the three months ended March 31, 2009, the Company acquired 1,315 shares of common stock from employees in connection with withholding tax
payments related to the vesting of restricted stock for a total consideration of $11. The purchase price of $8.31 per share was the average of the high and low price

of the Company’s shares of common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on the trading day prior to the vesting date of the shares of restricted stock. These
shares are held as treasury stock.

During the three months ended March 31, 2009, the Company purchased 5,621 shares of its common stock for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $34, excluding commissions, representing an average purchase price per share of $6.11 as part of the share repurchase program that authorized the
purchase of up to $10,000 of the Company’s outstanding common stock on or prior to November 2009. Repurchased shares have been recorded as treasury shares
and will be held until the Company’s board of directors designates that these shares be retired or used for other purposes.

9. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company’s Gratuity Plan applicable to India-based employees provides a lump sum payment to vested employees on retirement or on termination of
employment in an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and years of employment with the Company. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are
determined by actuarial valuation. Current service costs for the Gratuity Plan are accrued in the year to which they relate.

Net gratuity cost includes the following components:

Three months ended

March 31,
2009 2008
Service cost $ 65 $ 76
Interest cost 27 24
Actuarial loss 17 —
Net gratuity cost $ 109 $ 100

The Company contributes to various defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees in India and the Philippines. The assets held by the plans are not
reported on the Company’s balance sheet. The contributions made to the plans for each period are as follows:

Three months ended March 31, 2009 $439
Three months ended March 31, 2008 $497

1
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EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
March 31, 2009

(Unaudited)
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

10. Leases

The Company leases motor vehicles for some of its employees. Such leases are recorded as capital leases with interest rates ranging from 10.5% to 13.5%.
Future minimum lease payments under these capital leases at March 31, 2009 are as follows:

Year ending March 31,

2010 $140
2011 112
2012 31
Total minimum lease payments 283
Less: amount representing interest 25
Present value of minimum lease payments 258
Less: current portion _123
Long term capital lease obligation $135

The Company conducts its operations using facilities leased under non-cancelable operating lease agreements that expire through February 2014. Future

minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating lease agreements expiring after more than twelve months are as follows:

Year ending March 31,

2010 $2,079
2011 2,649
2012 1,196
2013 609
2014 525
Total minimum lease payments $7,058

The operating leases are subject to renewal periodically and have scheduled rent increases. We account for scheduled rent on a straight line basis over the
lease period. Rent expense under both cancelable and non-cancelable operating leases was $1,257 and $1,504 for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and
2008, respectively.

11. Income Taxes

The Company recorded income tax expense/(benefit) of $263 and ($31) for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The effective rate of taxes attributable to continuing operations has increased from a tax benefit of 0.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to a tax
provision of 8.0% for the three months ended March 31, 2009. Changes in our effective rate of taxes are primarily due to the changes in the geographic
distribution of our income. Certain of our Indian subsidiaries benefit from a tax holiday until March 2010.

The fiscal year under the Indian Income Tax Act ends on March 31 of each year. A portion of the Company’s Indian operations qualifies for exemption
from taxable income because its profits are attributable to work performed in Export Processing Zones. This exemption is available for a period of ten
consecutive years beginning from the year in which the entity commenced commercial operations. Accordingly, Ex] India and Inductis India benefit from this
deduction. This exemption terminates if the Company ceases to operate in Export Processing Zones or by March 2010 when the tax exemption period expires.
ESSPL is not eligible for this deduction. The export revenue of Exl India and Inductis India qualifies for a deduction from taxable income because its profits are
attributable to work performed in Export Processing Zones, and a portion of the temporary differences will not have any tax consequences as they will reverse
within the tax holiday period.

Pursuant to changes in the Indian Income Tax Act from April 1, 2007, the Company has calculated its tax liability after considering the Minimum Alternate
Tax (“MAT”). Amounts paid towards MAT can be carried forward and set off against future tax liabilities. In accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes”, a deferred tax asset of $1,390 and $2,109 has been recognized as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively, with respect to such
payments.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying
values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss carry forwards. At March 31, 2009, the Company performed an analysis of the
deferred tax asset valuation allowance for its Indian subsidiaries. Based on this analysis, the Company has concluded that a valuation allowance offsetting certain
deferred tax assets should continue to be recorded at March 31, 2009 based on the conclusion that it is more likely than not that there will not be sufficient future
taxable income to realize the deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 was approximately $4,278 and $4,010,
respectively.

12. Stock-Based Compensation

The following costs related to the Company’s stock-based compensation plan are included in the consolidated statement of income:

Three months ended

March 31,
2009 2008
Cost of revenue $ 301 $ 132
General and administrative expenses 763 599
Selling and marketing expenses 475 257
Total $ 1,539 $ 988

The Finance Act of India, 2007 has imposed a Fringe Benefit Tax (“FBT”) on equity compensation effective April 1, 2007. The FBT is calculated on the
difference between the fair market value as of the vesting date and the exercise price of the equity compensation awards granted to India-based employees. For
the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company recorded FBT expense of approximately $0 and $13, respectively. The Company recovers FBT
from its India-based employees. In accordance with GAAP, the recovery of FBT is treated as additional exercise price and is recorded as an addition to additional
paid-in capital in the unaudited consolidated balance sheet.

The fair value of each stock option granted to employees, not subject to the FBT is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model and the fair value of each stock option granted to employees subject to the FBT is estimated at the date of grant using the Monte Carlo simulation model
with the following weighted average assumptions:

Three months ended

March 31,
2009 2008
Expected life (years) 4.50 3.50
Dividend yield 0% 0%
Risk free interest rate 1.65% 2.34%
Volatility 50% 35%

The estimated expected term of options granted has been based on historical experience since October 2006, which is representative of the expected term of
the options. Volatility has been calculated based on the volatility of the Company’s common stock and the volatility of stocks of comparative companies. The
risk-free interest rate that the Company uses in the option valuation model is based on U.S. treasury zero-coupon bonds with a remaining term similar to the
expected term of the options. The Company does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future and therefore uses an expected dividend yield
of zero in the option valuation model. The Company is required to estimate forfeitures at the time of grant and revise those estimates in subsequent periods if
actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The Company uses historical data to estimate pre-vesting option forfeitures and records stock-based compensation
expense only for those awards that are expected to vest. All stock-based payment awards are amortized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service periods
of the awards, which are generally the vesting periods.
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Stock option activity under the Company’s stock plans is shown below:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining
Number Exercise Aggregate Contractual
of Shares Price Intrinsic Value Life (years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 1,788,751 $ 14.67 $ 364 7.92
Granted 1,509,189 8.73
Exercised — —
Forfeited (10,600) 17.75
Outstanding at March 31, 2009 3,287,340 $ 11.93 $ 379 8.68
Vested and exercisable at March 31, 2009 648,241 $ 12.60 $ 359 6.90
Available for grant at March 31, 2009 4,176,849

The unrecognized compensation cost for unvested options as of March 31, 2009 is $10,331 which is expected to be expensed over a weighted average
period of 2.89 years. The weighted-average fair value of options granted during the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 was $3.42 and $4.87,
respectively. The total fair value of shares vested during the three months ended March 31, 2009 is $913.

Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

Restricted stock and restricted stock unit activity under the Company’s stock plans is shown below:

Restricted Stock Restricted Stock Units
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Intrinsic Intrinsic
Number Value Number Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 578,246 $ 20.13 24,000 $ 10.26
Granted — — — —
Vested (40,900) 23.74 — —
Forfeited (11,328) 14.92 — —
Outstanding at March 31, 2009 526,018 $ 1996 24,000 $ 10.26

As of March 31, 2009, unrecognized compensation cost of $8,013 is expected to be expensed over a weighted average period of 2.6 years.

Advisory Board Options

During the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company recorded compensation expense of $11 and ($16), respectively related to stock
options granted to advisory board. The fair value and related compensation expense will be calculated for the unvested portion of these options at the end of each
reporting period until such options are fully vested.

Client Options

In connection with the execution of a five-year services agreement, the Company issued options to purchase 230,200 shares of common stock at an exercise
price of $6.25 per share in July 2004 to one of its clients. The options are fully exercisable and expire ten years from the date of grant. The value of the options on
the date of issuance, using the Black-Scholes valuation model, was approximately $1,792. Such amount is being amortized as a reduction in revenue over the
five-year term of the services agreement. Amortization for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 was $60 and $90, respectively.
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13. Related Party Transactions

On January 15, 2008, the Company purchased net assets for a consideration of $1,508 from a company controlled by entities related to the Oak Hill
Partnerships, one of the Company’s significant stockholders. The Company recorded expenses of $0 and $394 for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and
2008, respectively, for transition services performed by the seller prior to the acquisition. As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the Company had no
amounts payable related to these transactions.

The Company provides transformation services to Duane Reade Holdings, Inc., a New York City drugstore chain. Duane Reade Holdings, Inc. is indirectly
owned by entities related to the Oak Hill Partnerships, one of the Company’s significant stockholders. The Company recognized revenue of approximately $57
and $100 during the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, for fees and expense reimbursements from Duane Reade Holdings, Inc. At
March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, the Company had an account receivable of $33 and $89, respectively, related to these services.

14. Geographical Information

Three months ended

March 31,
2009 2008
Revenues
United States $26,898 $23,684
United Kingdom 13,975 20,627
Rest of world (excluding India) 58 62
India 55 58

$40,986 $44,431

During the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company’s total revenues from the three largest clients were $18,753 and $20,082,
respectively, accounting for 45.8% and 45.2% of the total revenues, respectively, during these periods.

March 31, December 31,
2009 2008
Fixed assets, net
India $19,209 $ 19,235
Philippines 3,641 3,995
United States 1,122 1,182
United Kingdom 51 106

$24,023 $ 24518

15. Commitments and Contingencies
Fixed Asset Commitments

At March 31, 2009, the Company had committed to spend approximately $1,705 under agreements to purchase fixed assets. This amount is net of advances
paid in respect of these purchases.

Other Commitments

The Company’s delivery centers in India have been established as 100% Export-Oriented units under the “Export Import Policy” (the “Policy”) or Software
Technology Parks of India units (“STPI”) under the STPI guidelines issued by the Government of India that has provided the Company with certain incentives on
imported and indigenous capital goods. Under this policy, these units must achieve certain export ratios and realize revenues attributable to exports over a
specified period. In the event that these units are unable to meet the requirements over the specified period, the Company may be required to refund these
incentives along with penalties and fines. However, management believes that these units will achieve the export levels within the required timeframe as they
have consistently generated the required levels of export revenues.
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ExI Philippines is registered as an Ecozone IT Enterprise with the Philippines Economic Zone Authority. Ex] Philippines has an export obligation of
$13,100 during the three year period ending March 31, 2011. The registration has also provided the Company with certain incentives on the import of capital
goods. Management believes that ExI Philippines will achieve these export levels within the required timeframe.

Contingencies

U.S. and Indian transfer pricing regulations require that any international transaction involving associated enterprises be at an arm’s-length price.
Transactions among the Company’s subsidiaries and the Company may be required to satisfy such requirements. Accordingly, the Company determines the
pricing among its associated enterprises on the basis of detailed functional and economic analysis involving benchmarking against transactions among entities
that are not under common control. If the applicable income tax authorities review any of the Company’s tax returns and determine that the transfer price applied
was not appropriate, the Company may incur increased tax liability, including accrued interest and penalties. The Company is currently involved in disputes with
the Indian tax authorities over the application of some of its transfer pricing policies. The Company has received six assessment orders from the Indian tax
authorities with respect to their audit of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries. The Indian tax authorities are examining income tax returns for other tax years.
The details of the assessment orders as of March 31, 2009 are as below:

Amount Amount
Entity Tax Year Issue Demanded  Deposited
Exl India 2003-04 The assessment order alleges that the transfer price the Company applied to transactions between ExI India $ 1,900 $ 1,900
and ExI Inc. in the 2003-04 tax year was not appropriate and disallows certain expenses claimed as tax
deductible by ExI India.
Exl India 2004-05 The assessment order alleges that the transfer price the Company applied to transactions between ExI India $ 1,900 $ 1,900
and ExI Inc. for the 2004-05 tax year was not appropriate and disallows certain expenses claimed as tax
deductible by ExI India.
Exl India 2005-06 The assessment order alleges that the transfer price the Company applied to transactions between ExI India $ 4800 $ 1,600
and ExI Inc. for the 2005-06 tax year was not appropriate and disallows certain expenses claimed as tax
deductible by Exl India.
Exl Inc. 2003-04 The assessment order alleges that Exl Inc. has a permanent establishment in India. $ 2900 $ 1,400
ExI Inc. 2004-05 The assessment order alleges that ExI Inc. has a permanent establishment in India. $ 100 $ —
Exl Inc. 2005-06 The assessment order alleges that Exl Inc. has a permanent establishment in India. $ 700 $ 400

Based on advice from its Indian tax advisors, the facts underlying its position and its experience with these types of assessments, the Company believes that
the probability of loss is remote and accordingly has not accrued any amount with respect to these matters in its consolidated financial statements. The Company
does not expect any impact from these assessments on its future income tax expense. The Company is subject to U.S. income taxes on the profits it recognizes in
the United States. The Company has deposited the entire amount demanded by the Indian tax authorities with respect to the assessment orders received by Exl
India for the 2003-04 and 2004-05 tax years and partial amounts with respect to the assessment orders received by Exl Inc. During the three months ended
March 31, 2009, the Company reached agreement with the Indian tax authorities for a deposit of approximately $1,600 with respect to the assessment order
received by ExI India for the 2005-06 tax year. There is a likelihood that the Company might receive similar orders for other years until the above disputes are
resolved. Amounts paid as deposits in respect of the assessments described above, totaling $7,200 and $5,800 as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008,
respectively, are included in “Other assets” in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

In order to resolve the outstanding transfer pricing and permanent establishment tax disputes with the Indian tax authorities, the Company has filed requests
with the U.S. competent authorities to invoke a Mutual Agreement Procedure, or MAP, under the United States — India Income Tax Treaty. As a result of
commencing the MAP, the U.S. competent authorities will work with the Indian competent authorities to propose a resolution to the outstanding tax disputes. The
proposed resolution is not binding on the Company. As required by the MAP, the Company obtained bank guarantees of approximately $2,600 subsequent to
March 31, 2009, and will need to obtain additional bank guarantees of approximately $3,500 during the third quarter of 2009, in favor of the government of India
to stop the collection of the outstanding tax demands and interest for tax years 2003-04, 2004-05 and 2005-06. If additional assessment orders are received for
other years, the Company may invoke the MAP for such orders.
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16. Discontinued Operations

On August 11, 2008, the Company completed the sale of all of its shares of NCOP to Aviva Global Services Singapore Pte Ltd. The Company received
consideration totaling approximately $3,430 ($1,982 in the three months ended September 30, 2008 and $1,448 in the three months ended March 31, 2009).
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, was ($139), or $0.00 per share, for the three months ended March 31, 2009, compared to
$2,085, or $0.07 per share, for the three months ended March 31, 2008.

The following table shows the major categories for discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of income for the three months ended March 31,
2009 and 2008:

Three months ended

March 31,
2009 2008

Operations:
Revenues $ — $ 6,517
Income from discontinued operations $ — $ 2,721
Income tax provision — 636

$ — $ 2,085
Disposal:
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations $(180) $ —
Income tax provision/(benefit) (41) —

$(139 $ —
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes $(139) $ 2,085
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion in connection with our unaudited consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our audited consolidated financial statements and the related notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2008. Some of the statements in the following discussion are forward looking statements. See “Forward Looking Statements.”
Dollar amounts within Item 2 are presented as actual dollar amounts.

Overview

We are a leading provider of outsourcing and transformation services focused on providing a competitive edge to our clients by outsourcing and
transforming their business processes. Our outsourcing services provide integrated front-, middle- and back-office process outsourcing services for our U.S.-based
and U.K.-based clients. Outsourcing services involve the transfer to us of select business operations of a client, such as claims processing, finance and accounting
and customer service, after which we administer and manage the operations for our client on an ongoing basis. We also offer a number of transformation service
offerings that include decision analytics, risk and financial management and operations and process excellence services. These transformation services help our
clients improve their operating environments through cost reduction, enhanced efficiency and productivity initiatives, and improve the risk and control
environments within our clients’ operations whether or not they are outsourced to us. A significant portion of our business relates to processes that we believe are
integral to our clients’ operations, and the close nature of our relationships with our clients assists us in developing strong strategic long-term relationships with
them. We serve primarily the needs of Global 1000 companies in the insurance, utilities, financial services and transportation sectors.

We market our services directly through our sales and marketing and strategic account management teams, which operate out of New York and London,
and our business development team, which operates out of Noida, India. We currently operate nine operations centers in India and one operations center in the
Philippines.

On August 11, 2008, the Company completed the sale of all of its shares of Noida Customer Operations Private Limited (“NCOP’) to Aviva Global
Services Singapore Pte Ltd. For all the periods presented, NCOP is reported as a discontinued operation and any discussion throughout this Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and consolidated financial statements relates to continuing operations unless otherwise
indicated.

We generate revenues principally from contracts to provide outsourcing and transformation services. For the three months ended March 31, 2009, we had
total revenues of $41.0 million compared to total revenues of $44.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008, a decrease of 7.8%, primarily due to the
appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the U.K. pound sterling and lower revenues in our transformation services segment as a result of lower client discretionary
spending due to broad based weakness in the economy. Revenues from transformation services, excluding the impact of the appreciation of the U.S. dollar against
the U.K. pound sterling, grew by $2.7 million during the three months ended March 31, 2009 due to ongoing growth in our existing client relationships.
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We anticipate that our revenues will grow as we expand our service offerings, both organically and through acquisitions. We provide our clients with a
range of outsourcing services, including insurance services, banking and financial services, utilities, finance and accounting services, and collection services. Our
clients transfer the management and execution of their processes or business functions to us. As part of this transfer, we hire and train employees to work at our
operations centers on the relevant outsourcing services, implement a process migration to these operations centers and then provide services either to the client or
directly to the client’s customers. Each client contract has different terms based on the scope, deliverables and complexity of the engagement. The outsourcing
services we provide to any of our clients (particularly under our general framework agreements), and the revenues and income that we derive from those services,
may decline or vary as the type and quantity of services we provide under those contracts change over time, including as a result of a shift in the mix of products
and services we provide.

For outsourcing services, we enter into long-term agreements with our clients with initial terms ranging from three to five years. Although these
agreements provide us with a relatively predictable revenue base for a substantial portion of our business, the long selling cycle for our outsourcing services and
the budget and approval processes of prospective clients make it difficult to predict the timing of new client acquisitions. Revenues under new client contracts
also vary depending on when we complete the selling cycle and the implementation phase.

Our transformation services include various services such as decision analytics services which are intended to facilitate more effective data-based strategic
and operating decisions by our clients, risk and financial management services and operations and process excellence services.

Our transformation services can be, and in the three months ended March 31, 2009, were, significantly affected by variations in business cycles. In
addition, our transformation services usually consist of specific projects with contract terms generally not exceeding one year and may not produce ongoing or
recurring business for us once the project is completed. These contracts also usually contain provisions permitting termination of the contract after a short notice
period. The short-term nature and specificity of these projects could lead to further material fluctuations and uncertainties in the revenues generated from these
businesses.

We serve clients mainly in the United States and the United Kingdom, with these two regions generating approximately 65.6% and 34.1%, respectively, of
our total revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2009, and approximately 53.3% and 46.4%, respectively, of our total revenues for the three months
ended March 31, 2008.

In both the United States and the United Kingdom, there has been recent negative publicity and proposed legislation with regard to outsourcing. If these
trends continue and result in the enactment of additional legislation for which we are unable to contractually protect ourselves, our revenues could be materially
affected. With the recent global economic downturn and resulting increases in unemployment in both of these countries, we expect these publicity and legislative
trends to continue and possibly intensify. Our management actively monitors legislative activities in the United States and United Kingdom, both directly and
through industry organizations. However, if legislation were enacted in the United Kingdom or the United States that has the effect of severely curtailing our
activities in such countries, it is unlikely that we would be able to quickly replace such lost revenues.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from a limited number of large clients. In the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, our total
revenues from our three largest clients were $18.8 million and $20.1 million, respectively, accounting for 45.8% and 45.2% of our total revenues, respectively,
during these periods.
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We provide services to Centrica, which represented $8.7 million, or 21.2%, of our total revenues, for the three months ended March 31, 2009, and $12.0
million, or 26.9% of our total revenues, for the three months ended March 31, 2008, under an agreement that is scheduled to expire in April 2012.

We derived revenues from two and nine new clients during the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Although we are increasing and
diversifying our customer base, we expect in the near future that a significant portion of our revenues will continue to be contributed by a limited number of large
clients.

We recognize revenues from services provided under our client contracts on a cost-plus, time-and-materials, fixed price, contingent fee or unit-price basis.
Revenue is recognized on cost-plus contracts on the basis of contractually agreed direct and indirect cost elements incurred on a client contract plus an agreed
upon profit mark-up. Revenues are recognized on time-and-material contracts primarily on the basis of full time equivalent employees, including direct and
indirect costs, incurred on a client contract. Revenues are recognized on fixed-price contracts using the proportional performance method. Revenues are
recognized on contingent fee based contracts is recognized when the related contingency has been met to the client’s satisfaction. Revenues are recognized on
unit-price based contracts based on the number of specified units of work (such as the number of e-mail responses) delivered to a client.

Revenues also include amounts representing reimbursable expenses that are billed to and reimbursed by our clients and typically include
telecommunication and travel-related costs. The amount of reimbursable expenses that we incur, and any resulting revenues, can vary significantly from period to
period depending on each client’s situation and on the type of services provided. For the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, $1.5 million, or 3.7%, and
$2.9 million, or 6.6%, respectively, of our revenues represent reimbursement of such expenses.

To the extent our client contracts do not contain provisions to the contrary, we bear the risk of inflation and fluctuations in currency exchange rates with
respect to our contracts. We hedge a substantial portion of our Indian rupee/U.S. dollar and U.K. pound sterling/U.S. dollar foreign currency exposure.

Our management has observed in recent periods a shift in industry pricing models toward transaction-based pricing. We believe this trend will continue and
we have begun to use transaction-based pricing models with some of our current clients and are seeking to move certain other clients from a billing rate model to
a transaction-based pricing model. Transaction-based pricing requires that we maintain peak efficiency in our service delivery in order to maintain our operating
margins.

In addition, we have also observed that prospective larger clients are entering into multi-vendor relationships with regard to their outsourcing needs.
Although we have recently had certain clients consolidate their operations within a single service provider, this was done after a period in which the client
maintained relationships with multiple vendors and we believe the trend toward multi-vendor relationships will continue. A multi-vendor relationship allows a
client to obtain optimal pricing and other contract terms from each vendor, which can result in significantly reduced operating margins from the provision of
services to such client. To the extent our large clients expand their use of multi-vendor relationships, our operating margins may be reduced with regard to such
clients.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

For a description of our critical accounting policies and estimates, refer our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Results of Operations

The following table summarizes our results of operations:

Three months ended

March 31,

(In millions) 2009 2008
Revenues(1) $ 410 $ 444
Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation and amortization)(2) 24.4 28.6
Gross profit 16.6 15.8
Operating expenses:

General and administrative expenses(3) 6.7 8.4

Selling and marketing expenses(3) 3.2 24

Depreciation and amortization(4) 2.4 2.5
Total operating expenses 12.3 13.3
Income from operations 4.3 2.5
Other income/(expense):

Foreign exchange gain/(loss) (1.3) 1.6

Interest and other income, net 0.3 0.6
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 33 4.7
Income tax provision/(benefit) 0.3 —
Income from continuing operations 3.0 4.7
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes 0.1) 2.1
Net income to common stockholders $ 29 $ 68

M

(@)

3

()]

In accordance with GAAP, we include the amount of telecommunications and travel-related costs that are billed to and reimbursed by our clients in our
revenues. Revenues include reimbursable expenses of $1.5 million and $2.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Cost of revenues includes $0.3 million and $0.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, as non-cash amortization of
stock compensation expense relating to the issuance of equity awards to employees directly involved in providing services to our clients as described in
Note 12 to our unaudited consolidated financial statements. Cost of revenues excludes depreciation and amortization related to fixed assets.

General and administrative expenses and selling and marketing expenses includes $1.2 million and $0.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009
and 2008 respectively, as non-cash amortization of stock compensation expense relating to the issuance of equity awards to our non-operations staff as
described in Note 12 to our unaudited consolidated financial statements.

Depreciation and amortization includes amortization of intangibles of $0.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008.
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Three Months Ended March 31, 2009 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2008

Revenues. Revenues decreased 7.8% from $44.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to $41.0 million for the three months ended March 31,
2009. Revenues from outsourcing services decreased by $1.5 million, resulting from a $4.2 million reduction due to the appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the
U.K. pound sterling partially offset by volume increases within existing processes and the addition of 15 new processes totaling $2.7 million during the three
months ended March 31, 2009. Revenues from new clients for outsourcing services were $0 million and $0.1 million during the three months ended March 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively.

Revenues from transformation services decreased by $1.9 million, resulting from a $0.8 million reduction due to the appreciation of the U.S. dollar against
the U.K. pound sterling and lower revenues due to reduced client spending on discretionary projects during the three months ended March 31, 2009. Revenues
from new clients for transformation services were $0.1 million and $0.5 million during the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues decreased 14.9% from $28.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to $24.4 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2009. Salaries and personnel expenses decreased from $20.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to $17.5 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2009, primarily due to the depreciation of the Indian rupee against the U.S. dollar, resulting in a decrease in costs of $3.7 million,
partially offset by an increase in headcount and salary levels. Other operating costs decreased from $8.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to
$6.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009, primarily due to a decrease in reimbursable expenses by $1.0 million and depreciation of the Indian
rupee against the U.S. dollar, resulting in a decrease in costs of $1.0 million. As a percentage of revenues, cost of revenues decreased from 64.4% for the three
months ended March 31, 2008 to 59.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2009.

Gross Profit. Gross profit increased 5.3% from $15.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to $16.6 million for the three months ended
March 31, 2009. The increase in gross profit was primarily the result of a decrease in cost of revenues of $4.3 million, offset by a decrease in revenues of $3.4
million. Gross profit as a percentage of revenues increased from 35.6% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to 40.6% for the three months ended
March 31, 2009.

SG&A Expenses. SG&A expenses decreased 7.7% from $10.8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to $9.9 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2009. The decrease in SG&A expense is primarily due to the depreciation of the Indian rupee against the U.S. dollar resulting in a decrease in
costs of $0.8 million, a decrease in other operating expenses of $0.9 million, partially offset by an increase in salary and personnel expenses of $0.8 million due to
the addition of sales and marketing staff. As a percentage of revenues, SG&A expenses were 24.2% for each of the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2009.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization decreased 3.4% from $2.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to $2.4
million for the three months ended March 31, 2009. As we add more operations centers, we expect that depreciation expense will increase to reflect the additional
investment in equipment and operations centers necessary to meet service requirements.
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Income from Operations. Income from operations increased 69.0% from $2.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to $4.3 million for the
three months ended March 31, 2009. As a percentage of revenues, income from operations increased from 5.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to
10.4% for the three months ended March 31, 2009. The increase in income from operations was primarily the result of an increase in gross profit of $0.8 million
and a decrease in operating expenses of $0.9 million, primarily due to the depreciation of the Indian rupee against the U.S. dollar.

Other Income/(expense). Other income is comprised of foreign exchange gains and losses, interest income, interest expense and other. Other income
decreased from income of $2.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to an expense of $1.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009 as a
result of a significant increase in net foreign exchange losses attributable to movement of the Indian rupee against the U.S. dollar and the U.K. pound sterling
relative to our hedged position.

Provision for Income Taxes. Provision for income taxes increased from $0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to $0.3 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2009. The effective rate of taxes has increased from a benefit of 0.7% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to a provision of 8.0%
for the three months ended March 31, 2009. This is primarily due to changes in the geographic distribution of our income.

Income from continuing operations. Income from continuing operations decreased from $4.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to $3.0
million for the three months ended March 31, 2009, due to a significant increase in foreign exchange losses attributable to the movement of the Indian rupee
against the U.S. dollar and the U.K. pound sterling relative to our hedged position, partially offset by higher income from operations. As a percentage of revenues,
income from continuing operations decreased from 10.6% for the three months ended March 31, 2008 to 7.4% for the three months ended March 31, 20009.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
At March 31, 2009, we had $106.6 million in cash and cash equivalents on hand.

Cash flows used for operating activities decreased from $9.8 million in the three months ended March 31, 2008 to $1.2 million in the three months ended
March 31, 2009. Generally, factors that affect our earnings—for example, pricing, volume of services, costs and productivity—affect our cash flows provided by
or used for operations in a similar manner. However, while management of working capital, including timing of collections and payments, affects operating
results only indirectly, the impact on working capital and cash flows provided by operating activities can be significant. The decrease in cash flows used for
operations is predominantly due to changes in working capital by $10.2 million, partially offset by the decrease in net income adjusted for non-cash items by $1.6
million. Changes in working capital are primarily due to a reduction in accounts receivable of $2.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2009 as
compared to an increase of $7.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2008.

Cash flows used for investing activities decreased from $8.5 million in the three months ended March 31, 2008 to $3.6 million in the three months ended
March 31, 2009. The decrease is primarily the result of lower capital expenditures of $1.8 million in the three months ended March 31, 2009, payment of $1.7
million as purchase consideration for an acquisition made during the three months ended March 31, 2008 and proceeds from the sale of our discontinued
operations of $1.4 million.

Cash flows used for financing activities were insignificant during the quarters ended March 31, 2009 and 2008.

We expect to use cash from operating activities to maintain and expand our business. As we have focused on expanding our cash flow from operating
activities, we continue to make capital investments, primarily related to new facilities and the purchase of capital expenditures made by us represent primarily
leasehold improvements to build out facilities, telecommunications equipment and computer hardware and software in connection with managing client
operations. We incurred approximately $5.0 million of capital expenditures in the three months ended March 31, 2009. We expect to incur capital expenditures of
approximately $10 million to $15 million in the remainder of fiscal year 2009 primarily to meet the growth requirements of our clients, including additions to our
facilities as well as to improve our internal technology. The timing and volume of such capital expenditures in the future will be affected by new contracts we
may enter into or the expansion of our existing contracts. In addition, we expect to repurchase shares of our common stock from time to time until November
2009. Through March 31, 2009, we had repurchased an aggregate of approximately $0.4 million under our previously announced program to repurchase up to
$10.0 million of our common stock.

In addition, in connection with the tax assessment orders issued against Exl India and ExI Inc. we may be required to deposit additional amounts with
respect to the assessment orders received by us and for similar orders for subsequent years that may be received by us. As required by the MAP, the Company
obtained bank guarantees of approximately $2.6 million subsequent to March 31, 2009, and will need to obtain additional bank guarantees of approximately $3.5
million during the third quarter of 2009, in favor of the government of India to stop the collection of the outstanding tax demands and interest for tax years 2003-
04, 2004-05 and 2005-06.

We anticipate that we will continue to rely upon cash from operating activities to finance our capital expenditures and working capital needs. Based on
economic conditions as of March 31, 2009, we believe that cash flow from operations will be sufficient to meet our ongoing capital expenditure, working capital
and other cash needs in the near term. If we have significant growth through acquisitions or require additional operating facilities to service customer contracts,
we may need to obtain additional financing.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, we had no off-balance sheet arrangements or obligations.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth our contractual obligations as of March 31, 2009:

Payments Due by Period (in millions)

Less than

1 year
Capital leases $0.1
Operating leases 2.1
Purchase obligations 1.7
Other obligations(a) 0.5
Total contractual cash obligations $4.4

(@) Represents estimated payments under the Company’s Gratuity Plan.
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Our delivery centers in India have been established as 100% Export-Oriented units under the “Export Import Policy” (the “Policy”) or Software
Technology Parks of India units (“STPI”) under the STPI guidelines issued by the Government of India that has provided us with certain incentives on imported
and indigenous capital goods. Under this policy, these units must achieve certain export ratios and realize revenues attributable to exports over a specified period.
In the event that these units are unable to meet the requirements over the specified period, we may be required to refund these incentives along with penalties and
fines. However, management believes that these units will achieve the export levels within the required timeframe as they have consistently generated the

required levels of export revenues.

_Total
$ 02
7.1
1.7
_29

$11.9

ExI Philippines is registered as an Ecozone IT Enterprise with the Philippines Economic Zone Authority. Ex! Philippines has an export obligation of $13.1
million during the three year period ending March 31, 2011. The registration has also provided us with certain incentives on the import of capital goods.

Management believes that Ex] Philippines will achieve these export levels within the required timeframe.

24



Table of Contents

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations” (“SFAS No. 141
(revised 2007)”). SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) changes the accounting for business combinations including the measurement of acquirer shares issued in
consideration for a business combination, the recognition of contingent consideration, the accounting for pre-acquisition gain and loss contingencies, the
recognition of capitalized in-process research and development, the accounting for acquisition-related restructuring cost accruals, the treatment of acquisition-
related transaction costs and the recognition of changes in the acquirer’s income tax valuation allowance. SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008, with early adoption prohibited. The impact of SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) on our consolidated financial statements will
depend on the size and nature of any acquisitions on or after January 1, 2009.

In February 2008, the FASB issued Financial Staff Positions (“FSP”) SFAS 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157 (“FSP 157-2”), which delays
the effective date of SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurement (“SFAS No. 157”), for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). FSP 157-2 partially defers the effective date of SFAS
No. 157 to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years for items within the scope of FSP 157-2. The
implementation of FSP 157-2 for non financial assets and financial liabilities, effective January 1, 2009, did not have a material impact on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities—an amendment of FASB Statement No.
133” (“SFAS No. 161”). SFAS No. 161 amends and expands the disclosures required by SFAS No. 133 so that they provide an enhanced understanding of how
and why an entity uses derivative instruments, how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 and its related
interpretations and how derivative instruments affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. SFAS No. 161 encourages, but does not
require, comparative disclosures for earlier periods at initial adoption. SFAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim
periods beginning after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. The adoption of SFAS No. 161, effective January 1, 2009, did not have a material
impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In April 2009, the FASB issued three Staff Positions that are intended to provide additional application guidance and enhance disclosures about fair value
measurements and impairments of securities. FSP FAS 157-4 clarifies the objective and method of fair value measurement when there has been a significant
decrease in market activity for the asset being measured. FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 establishes a new model for measuring other-than-temporary
impairments for debt securities, including establishing criteria for when to recognize a write-down through earnings versus other comprehensive income. FSP
FAS 107-1 and APB 28-1 expands the fair value disclosures required for all financial instruments within the scope of SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair
Value of Financial Instruments”, to interim periods. These FSPs are effective for periods ending after June 15, 2009. We are currently evaluating the impact that
these standards will have on our financial statements.
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Forward Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward looking statements. You should not place undue reliance on those statements because they are
subject to numerous uncertainties and factors relating to our operations and business environment, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are
beyond our control. Forward looking statements include information concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations, including descriptions of
our business strategy. These statements often include words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “estimate” or
similar expressions. These statements are based on assumptions that we have made in light of our experience in the industry as well as our perceptions of
historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and other factors we believe are appropriate under the circumstances. As you read and
consider this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, you should understand that these statements are not guarantees of performance or results. They involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Although we believe that these forward looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, you should be
aware that many factors could affect our actual financial results or results of operations and could cause actual results to differ materially from those in the
forward looking statements. These factors include but are not limited to:

9

»  our dependence on a limited number of clients in a limited number of industries;

»  worldwide political, economic or business conditions;

*  negative public reaction in the United States or elsewhere to offshore outsourcing

+ fluctuations in our earnings;

*  our ability to attract and retain clients;

*  restrictions on immigration;

» our ability to hire and retain enough sufficiently trained employees to support our operations;

* our ability to grow our business or effectively manage growth and international operations;

+  increasing competition in our industry;

* telecommunications or technology disruptions;

+ fluctuations in exchange rates between the currencies in which we receive our revenues and the currencies in which we incur our costs;
» regulatory, legislative and judicial developments, including the withdrawal of governmental fiscal incentives;
» technological innovation;

»  political or economic instability in the geographies in which we operate;

*  our ability to successfully consummate or integrate strategic acquisitions; and

* adverse outcome of our disputes with the Indian tax authorities.

These and other factors are more fully discussed elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. These and other risks could cause actual results to differ
materially from those implied by forward looking statements in this Quarterly Report of Form 10-Q.

You should keep in mind that any forward looking statement made by us in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, or elsewhere, speaks only as of the date on
which we make it. New risks and uncertainties come up from time to time, and it is impossible for us to predict these events or how they may affect us. We have
no obligation to update any forward looking statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q after the date of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, except as
required by federal securities laws.
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ITEM 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

During the three months ended March 31, 2009, there were no material changes in our market risk exposure. For a discussion of our market risk associated
with exchange rate risk and interest rate risk, see Item 7A “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2008.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports the
Company files under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive
Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), to allow timely decisions regarding required financial disclosure. In connection with the preparation of this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the Company’s management carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the CEO and CFO, of
the effectiveness and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of March 31, 2009. Based upon that evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded
that, as of March 31, 2009, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed by
us in reports filed under the Exchange Act were (i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms
and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our management, to allow timely decisions regarding disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the three months ended March 31, 2009, there was no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f) under the Exchange Act) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We have disclosed under the heading “Legal Proceedings” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 certain
proceedings which may materially affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. You should carefully consider the disclosures set forth in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 and the other information set forth elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
There are no material changes to the legal proceedings as described in our Annual Report.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We have disclosed under the heading “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 the risk factors which
materially affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. You should carefully consider the “Risk Factors” set forth in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 and the other information set forth elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. You should be aware that
these risk factors and other information may not describe every risk facing our Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us also may
materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and/or results of operations.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

None.

Use of Proceeds

None.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer

During the three months ended March 31, 2009, the Company acquired 1,315 shares of common stock from employees in connection with withholding tax
payments related to the vesting of restricted stock for a total consideration of $10,921. The purchase price of $8.31 per share was the average of the high and low
price of the Company’s shares of common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on the trading day prior to the vesting date of the shares of restricted stock.
These shares are held as treasury stock.

During the three months ended March 31, 2009, the Company purchased 5,621 shares of its common stock for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $34,332 excluding commissions, representing an average purchase price per share of $6.11 as part of the share repurchase program that authorized
the purchase of up to $10,000,000 of the Company’s outstanding common stock on or prior to November 2009. Repurchased shares have been recorded as
treasury shares and will be held until the Company’s board of directors designates that these shares be retired or used for other purposes.

Approximate

Total Number of Dollar Value of

Shares Purchased Shares that May
as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
Total Number of Average Price Announced Plans Under the Plans

Period Shares Purchased Paid per Share(1) or Programs or Programs
January 1 - January 31, 2009 — $ — — $ 9,660,492
February 1 - February 28, 2009 — $ — — $ 9,660,492
March 1 - March 31, 2009 5,621 $ 6.11 5,621 $ 9,626,160

(1) Excludes commissions paid by the Company in connection with the repurchases.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

On May 5, 2009, the Company and ExI India each entered into an employment letter agreement with Vishal Chhibbar. Mr. Chhibbar will serve as Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and ExI India effective June 1, 2009 (the “Effective Date”).

Mr. Chhibbar, age 41, has 20 years of professional experience and has been with GE Capital since 1998 where he has served in various senior leadership
roles in finance. Since 2005, Mr. Chhibbar has served as the Regional Head, Group Financial Planning for Strategy and Treasury for GE Capital, Australia and
New Zealand. In 2004 and 2005, Mr. Chhibbar was Chief Financial Officer for GE Capital, South Korea. From 1998 to 2004, Mr. Chhibbar was the Chief
Financial Officer for GE Capital, Indonesia and Malaysia. Mr. Chhibbar is a Chartered Accountant and holds a Bachelor of Commerce from DAV College,
Dehradun. Mr. Chhibbar will be based in EXL’s corporate offices in Noida, India.

Mr. Chhibbar will receive an annual basic salary of 6,187,500 Rupees (currently equivalent to $125,520 using a conversion rate of 49.2950 Rupees =
$1.00) and will be eligible to receive a target cash bonus equal to 50% of his total annual fixed compensation, which is currently 13,750,000 Rupees (equivalent
to $278,933 using such conversion rate), 60% of which will be subject to the achievement by the Company of corporate revenue and EBIT targets set for each
calendar year and 40% of which will be subject to the achievement by Mr. Chhibbar of personal targets set for each calendar year. The personal targets for the
remainder of 2009 are to be mutually agreed upon by Mr. Chhibbar and the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer. The bonus amount may exceed
50% of Mr. Chhibbar’s total annual fixed compensation if and to the extent the targets are exceeded, but the bonus amount cannot exceed 100% of Mr. Chhibbar’s
total annual fixed compensation. Any bonus for 2009 will be pro-rated to reflect Mr. Chhibbar’s June 1 commencement of employment.

Mr. Chhibbar is also entitled to receive a one-time signing bonus of 1,250,000 Rupees (equivalent to $25,358 using such conversion rate) within 60 days
following the Effective Date; provided that if Mr. Chhibbar’s employment with the Company is terminated by Mr. Chhibbar without “Good Reason” (as defined



in Mr. Chhibbar’s letter agreement with the Company (the “Letter Agreement”) or by the Company for “Cause” (as defined in the Letter Agreement) before
December 1, 2010, Mr. Chhibbar must refund the signing bonus to the Company within 30 days following his termination of employment. Mr. Chhibbar will be
eligible to participate in the Company’s pension benefit, health and welfare and fringe benefit plans otherwise available to executive employees stationed in India.

The Company will provide Mr. Chhibbar with various relocation benefits, including reimbursements for certain moving expenses, a temporary monthly
housing reimbursement through December 31, 2009, four round trip and four one way business class airfare tickets for travel between Melbourne, Australia and
New Delhi, India for Mr. Chhibbar and his immediate family, and certain reimbursements for tax returns and tax advisory services he uses before June 1, 2010.

In connection with his employment, Mr. Chhibbar will be eligible to participate in the Company’s 2006 Omnibus Award Plan (the “2006 Plan”) and will
receive a stock option grant on the Effective Date to purchase 100,000 shares of common stock of the Company. The exercise price of the options to be granted
will be equal to the average of the high and low sale prices of the Company’s common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select market on the date prior to the date of
the grant. The stock options will vest and become exercisable as to 10%, 20%, 30% and 40% of the option shares on of the first, second, third and fourth
respective anniversaries of the date of grant of the stock option.

If Mr. Chhibbar’s employment with the Company is terminated by the Company without “Cause” or by Mr. Chhibbar for “Good Reason” (each as defined
in the Letter Agreement), Mr. Chhibbar will be entitled to severance equal to one times to his annual total fixed compensation then in effect. In addition, if
(i) Mr. Chhibbar’s employment is terminated without Cause at any time after a Change of Control (as defined in the 2006 Plan) or in specific contemplation of a
Change of Control or (ii) Mr. Chhibbar resigns with “Good Reason” (as defined in Mr. Chhibbar’s stock option agreement) at any time following a Change of
Control, Mr. Chhibbar will also be entitled to immediate vesting of any unvested options to purchase common stock.

29



Table of Contents

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

10.1

10.2
10.3
31.1

31.2

31.3

321

32.2

32.3

The following exhibits are being filed as part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q:

Amendment No. 3 to ExIService Holdings, Inc. 2006 Omnibus Award Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to our Registration Statement on
Form S-8 (No. 333-157076)).

Separation Agreement, dated as of October 10, 2008, by and between the Company and Matthew Appel.
Letter Agreement, dated March 10, 2009, between the Company and Matthew Appel.

Certification of the Executive Chairman of ExIService Holdings, pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Exchange Act, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the President and Chief Executive Officer of ExIService Holdings, pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Exchange Act, as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of ExlService Holdings, pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Exchange Act, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Executive Chairman pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) of the Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

Date: May 11, 2009 By: /S/ MATTHEW APPEL

Matthew Appel
Chief Financial Officer
(Duly Authorized Signatory, Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 10.2
EXECUTION COPY
EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
SEPARATION AGREEMENT

This Separation Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into by and between ExIService Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) and Matthew Appel (the
“Executive”) and dated as of October 10, 2008 (the “Effective Date”).

In consideration of the promises set forth in this Agreement, the Executive and the Company (the “Parties”) hereby agree as follows:

1. Termination of Employment.

The Executive and the Company hereby agree that Executive’s employment and any and all appointments he holds with the Company and any of its
affiliates or subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company Group”), whether as officer, director, employee, consultant, agent or otherwise, shall cease as of March 16,
2009 (the “Termination Date”); provided, however, that if the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 (the
“Annual Report”) is not filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on or prior to March 16, 2009, (a) the parties may extend the Termination
Date by mutual agreement or (b) if so required pursuant to Section 2B hereof, the Company shall extend the Termination Date to the earlier of the date the Annual
Report is filed with the SEC and April 15, 2009. Effective as of the Termination Date, the Executive shall have no authority to act on behalf of the Company or
any other member of the Company Group, and shall not hold himself out as having such authority or otherwise act in an executive or other decision-making
capacity.

The Company agrees that prior to the Termination Date the Executive’s employment with the Company Group shall not be terminated by the Company for
any reason other than for “Cause”, as defined in the Employee Offer Letter dated February 22, 2007 from the Company to the Executive (the “Offer Letter”). The
Executive agrees not to voluntarily terminate his employment with the Company Group prior to the Termination Date. Both the Company and the Executive agree
that the Executive’s termination under this Agreement is not to be regarded as a termination of the Executive’s employment by the Company without Cause or a
termination of the Executive’s employment by the Executive for “Good Reason”, as defined in the Offer Letter.

The Executive acknowledges that from the Effective Date through the Termination Date the Executive will continue (without regard to the existence of this
Agreement or the Executive’s departure from the Company as contemplated hereby) to devote his entire business time and best efforts to the performance of his
duties hereunder as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company including, without limitation, timely filing the Annual Report with the SEC, and will continue to
follow the lawful instructions of the Board.

2. Entitlements.

A. As of and after the Termination Date, the Executive shall no longer participate in, accrue service credit or have contributions made on his behalf
under any employee benefit plan sponsored by any member of the Company Group in respect of periods commencing on and



following the Termination Date, including, without limitation, any plan which is intended to qualify under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended. The Executive shall be entitled to all benefits accrued up to the Termination Date, under all employee benefit plans of any member of the Company
Group, in accordance with the terms of such plans. The Executive may maintain his employee medical benefits under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended (“COBRA™) at his own expense.

B. In consideration for the Executive’s entering into this Agreement, subject to (i) Executive’s achievement of a performance rating of at least 3 on the 5
point scale of the Company’s appraisal process (provided that for this purpose such performance shall be measured against performance goals to be mutually
agreed between the Company and the Executive for the remaining period of employment through the Termination Date) and (ii) Section 6 below, the Company
will provide the Executive with a lump sum cash payment of $150,000 (the “Payment”), payable on the business day after the day on which the Company has
filed the Annual Report with the SEC; provided, however, that the Annual Report is filed on or before March 16, 2009; provided, further, that (1) if the Company
is unable to file its Annual Report with the SEC on or before March 16, 2009 due to events or matters which are both (x) not within the scope of Executive’s
duties as Chief Financial Officer of the Company (which duties, for the avoidance of doubt, include, without limitation, the management of the financial and
accounting functions and personnel within the Company and its subsidiaries) and (y) otherwise beyond the reasonable control of the Executive, the Company
shall extend the Termination Date to a date on or before April 15, 2009, and the Executive shall be entitled to receive the Payment if the Company files the
Annual Report with the SEC prior to the Termination Date (as so extended) and (2) if the parties agree to extend the Termination Date as contemplated by
Section 1 hereof, then the Executive shall still be entitled to receive the Payment if the Company files the Annual Report with the SEC prior to the Termination
Date (as so extended). In addition, subject to Section 6 below, the Company will provide the Executive with an additional lump sum cash payment of $25,000 in
the event (I) the Executive certifies the Annual Report for purposes of Sections 302 and 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, and (IT) the Executive assists in the
production of an internal control report pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act which affirms the responsibility of the Company’s management for
establishing and maintaining an adequate internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting and which contains an assessment, as of December 31,
2008, of the effectiveness of, and the absence of a material weakness in, the internal control structure and procedures of the Company for financial reporting, and
(I11) the Company’s auditors confirm in their opinion (as part of the Annual Report) that the Company maintained, in all material respects, internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2008.

C. Except as otherwise provided in Section 2H below, the Executive agrees that other than the payments enumerated in Section 2B above, the Executive
shall not be entitled to receive any other severance payments from the Company Group, whether under the terms of the Offer Letter or any other separation pay
plan maintained by the Company Group. The Executive shall also not receive a bonus in respect of the Company’s 2008 fiscal year.

D. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement: (i) nothing in this Agreement shall affect the ability of the Company under the Offer Letter
to terminate the Executive’s employment for “Cause” (as defined in the Offer Letter) and the Company reserves
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is rights under the Offer Letter and applicable law to take appropriate action if it determines (whether before, on or after the Termination Date) that it has (or had)
grounds to terminate the Executive’s employment for Cause; and (ii) if the Executive’s employment is terminated for Cause, the Executive shall have no
entitlement to any of the payments or benefits provided under this Agreement.

E. Except as otherwise provided in Section 2H below, any equity compensation award held by the Executive on the Termination Date shall be treated in
accordance with its terms. For the avoidance of doubt, upon the Executive’s termination of employment on the Termination Date, the Executive shall not be
required to repay any amounts pursuant to the last sentence of the last paragraph of the “Relocation” section of the Offer Letter.

F. All restrictions and obligations set forth in the Offer Letter (including, without limitation, those governing noncompetition, nonsolicitation,
nondisparagement (including the Company’s obligations under the Offer Letter in respect thereof) and confidentiality) shall continue in full force and effect in
accordance with their terms and shall survive the termination of the Executive’s employment to the extent necessary to preserve the intended rights and benefits
thereunder.

G. The Company shall not object to any application for Unemployment Insurance Benefits made by or on the behalf of the Executive and shall cooperate
with any application, inquiry or investigation necessary to establish benefits.

H. Nothing in this Agreement shall affect the change in control provisions of any equity compensation awards granted to the Executive or the change in
control provisions of the Offer Letter.

3. Return of Company Property.

A. No later than the Termination Date, the Executive shall return to the Company all originals and copies of papers, notes and documents (in any medium,
including computer disks), prepared, received or obtained by the Executive or his counsel during the course of, and in connection with, his employment with the
Company or any member of the Company Group, and all equipment and property of any member of the Company Group which may be in the Executive’s
possession or under his control, whether at the Company’s offices, the Executive’s home or elsewhere, including all such papers, work papers, notes, documents
and equipment in the possession of the Executive and his counsel. The Executive agrees that he and his family and counsel shall not retain copies of any such
papers, work papers, notes and documents.

B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Executive may retain copies of any agreements between the Executive and the Company relating to the Executive’s
employment and compensation for services, this Agreement and any employee benefit plan materials distributed generally to participants in any such plan by the
Company.

4. Reconciliation.

A. On the Termination Date, all telephone, credit card and other accounts being paid by any member of the Company Group on the Executive’s behalf shall
be terminated and all



related telephone cards, credit cards and other similar instruments shall be returned to the Company and canceled. To the extent any charges are made by the
Executive using such company accounts, telephone cards, credit cards and other similar instruments after the Termination Date, such charges will be solely the
Executive’s responsibility.

B. The Executive shall have 30 days following the Termination Date to submit to the Company all receipts, invoices, statements or other documents
supporting his entitlement to reimbursement for any properly incurred business expenses, consistent with the terms of the Executive’s employment and the
policies of the Company Group. Where such receipts, invoices, statements or other documents are not yet available, for example, including but not limited to,
credit card statements for a billing cycle that has not yet closed, the Executive shall have no more than 90 days from the Termination Date to submit such
documentation in support of a request for reimbursement.

5. Communications and Cooperation.

A. The Company shall have discretion (after consultation with the Executive) regarding the timing, content and any and all aspects of its internal, external
and media communication concerning the termination of the Executive’s employment by the Company, so long as such communications accord with the terms of
this Agreement. The Executive shall not participate in any such communication without the advance consent of the Company’s General Counsel or his designee.

B. The Executive shall cooperate in the orderly transition of Executive’s responsibilities and duties to Executive’s successor who shall be appointed by the
Company Group. In addition, the Executive shall continue to make himself available at reasonable times, so as not to unreasonably interfere with his ongoing
business activities, to answer questions relating to the historic operation and administration of the Company Group. In addition, the Executive agrees to cooperate
fully with the Company Group in connection with litigation, arbitration and similar proceedings (collectively “Dispute Proceedings™) and to provide truthful
testimony with respect to the Executive’s knowledge in any such Dispute Proceedings involving the Company and or any member of the Company Group,
without additional compensation or consideration from the Company, provided that if the Executive is requested by the Company or the Company Group to
cooperate as provided in this Section after the one year anniversary of the Termination Date, then the Executive shall be compensated on an hourly basis at the
rate of $250 per hour, subject to a daily maximum of $2,000, for such cooperation. In the event that the Executive is requested by the Company or the Company
Group to cooperate as required in this Section, the Company shall reimburse the Executive for all his reasonable and documented out-of-pocket travel and lodging
expenses.

6. Requirement of Release.

As a condition precedent to the payment to the Executive of any amounts set forth in Section 2 B, the Executive shall execute and deliver a general
release of claims (“Release) in favor of each member of the Company Group and their respective assigns, affiliates, subsidiaries, parents, predecessors and
successors, and the past and present shareholders, employees, officers, directors, partners, members, managers, trustees, agents (in their official and individual
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capacities), employee benefit plans and their administrators and fiduciaries (in their official and individual capacities), representatives and agents or any of them,
and each of their affiliates, successors and assigns, substantially in the form attached hereto as Attachment A, which shall also be executed by the Company, and
such Release shall have become effective in accordance with its terms.

7. Indemnification.

In further consideration of the Executive’s execution of this Agreement, and notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Company shall
indemnify and hold the Executive harmless to the fullest extent permitted by the Company’s certificate of incorporation and by-laws in respect of matters arising
in connection with the Executive’s employment and service as an officer of the Company and any member of the Company Group. The Company further
acknowledges and agrees that nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to extinguish or in any way diminish the Executive’s right to indemnification
provided by the first sentence of this Section 7.

8. Availability of Relief.

A. In the event that the Executive fails to abide by any of the terms of this Agreement, the Company may, in addition to any other remedies it may have,
terminate any benefits or payments that are subsequently due under this Agreement, without waiving the release granted by Executive herein.

B. The Executive acknowledges and agrees that the remedy at law available to the Company for breach of any of his post-termination obligations under this
Agreement, including but not limited to his obligations under Section 5 of this Agreement, or any of his post-termination-obligations under the Offer Letter,
would be inadequate and that damages flowing from such a breach may not readily be susceptible to being measured in monetary terms. Accordingly, the
Executive acknowledges, consents and agrees that, in addition to any other rights or remedies which the Company may have at law, in equity or under this
Agreement, the Company shall be entitled to immediate injunctive relief and may obtain a temporary order restraining any threatened or further breach of this
Agreement or the Offer Letter, without the necessity of proof of actual damage and without the requirement of posting a bond.

9. Miscellaneous.

A. Notices. Any notice given pursuant to this Agreement (including any revocation of the Release contemplated by Section 6 hereof) to any Party hereto
shall be deemed to have been duly given when mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or by overnight courier, or when hand delivered as
follows:

If to the Company:
ExlService Holdings, Inc.

350 Park Avenue, 10t floor
New York NY 10022

Attention: Amit Shashank, Esq.



If to the Executive:

Matthew Appel
5055 Shoreline Drive
Frisco, Texas 75034

or at such other address as either Party shall from time to time designate by written notice, in the manner provided herein, to the other Party hereto.
B. Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties, their respective heirs, successors and assigns.

C. Taxes. The Executive shall be responsible for the payment of any and all required federal, state, local and foreign taxes incurred, or to be incurred, in
connection with any amounts payable to the Executive under this Agreement. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Company may
withhold from amounts payable under this Agreement all federal, state, local and foreign taxes that are required to be withheld by applicable laws and regulations.

D. Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, the remaining terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall be unaffected and shall remain in full force and effect. In addition, if any provision is determined to be invalid or unenforceable due to its
duration and/or scope, the duration and/or scope of such provision, as the case may be, shall be reduced, such reduction shall be to the smallest extent necessary
to comply with applicable law, and such provision shall be enforceable, in its reduced form, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law.

E. Non-Admission. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed as an admission of wrongdoing or liability on the part of the
Executive or on the part of the Company.

F. No Mitigation. The Executive shall not be required to mitigate the amount of any payment provided for pursuant to this Agreement by seeking other
employment and, to the extent that the Executive obtains or undertakes other employment, the payment will not be reduced by the earnings of the Executive from
the other employment.

G. Governing Law/Venue. The laws of the State of New York shall govern this Agreement, the construction of its terms, and the interpretation of the rights
and duties of the parties hereto, without regard to any contrary choice of law rule or doctrine applicable in New York or elsewhere. The parties agree that unless
otherwise mutually agreed at the time the claim arises, New York, New York, shall be the exclusive place of proper venue for any legal proceeding involving a
claim arising from this Agreement, and the Executive consents to the personal jurisdiction of the courts in such location over him. Any action or other legal
proceeding arising under or relating to any provision of this Agreement shall be commenced only in state court, or if appropriate a federal court, located in the
County and State of New York, and the Company and the Executive consent to the jurisdiction of such a court. EACH PARTY
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HERETO HEREBY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN
RESPECT OF ANY SUIT, ACTION OR PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT. EACH PARTY HERETO

(I) CERTIFIES THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE,
THAT SUCH PARTY WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF ANY ACTION, SUIT OR PROCEEDING, SEEK TO ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER
AND (II) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT AND THE OTHER PARTY HERETO HAS BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT BY, AMONG
OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVER AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION 9G.

H. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by one or more of the Parties hereto on any number of separate counterparts and all such counterparts
shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument. Each Party hereto confirms that any facsimile copy of such Party’s executed counterpart of this Agreement
(or its signature page hereof) shall be deemed to be an executed original thereof.

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement is the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains all agreements,
whether written, oral, express or implied, between the Parties relating thereto and supersedes and extinguishes any other agreement relating thereto, whether
written, oral, express or implied, between the Parties; provided that no rights or obligations established under any such superseded agreement and specifically
preserved by this Agreement are extinguished; provided, further, that nothing in this Agreement shall supersede or extinguish the Executive’s obligations under
the Offer Letter. Other than this Agreement and as otherwise explicitly stated herein, there are no agreements of any nature whatsoever between the Executive and
the Company that survive this Agreement. This Agreement may not be modified or amended, nor may any rights under it be waived, except in a writing signed
and agreed to by the Parties.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement on the date first written above.
EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /s/  Rohit Kapoor

Name: Rohit Kapoor
Title:  President and Chief Executive Officer

EXECUTIVE

/s/  Matthew Appel

Matthew Appel



Attachment A
(General Release of Claims)

A. In partial consideration of the payments and benefits described in Section 2B of the Separation Agreement entered into by and between ExlService
Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) and the undersigned (the “Executive”), dated as of October 10, 2008 (the “Separation Agreement”), to which payments and
benefits the Executive agrees he is not entitled unless and until he executes and delivers to the Company this General Release of Claims (this “Release” or
“Agreement”) and this Release becomes effective in accordance with Paragraph E below, the Executive, on the Executive’s own behalf and on behalf of the
Executive’s descendants, dependents, heirs, executors and administrators and permitted assigns, past and present, does hereby covenant not to sue or pursue any
litigation (or file any charge or otherwise correspond with any Federal, state or local administrative agency), arbitration or other proceeding against, and waive,
release, acquit and forever discharge, to the fullest extent permitted by law, each member of the Company Group (each capitalized but undefined term in this
Release shall have the meaning given such term in the Separation Agreement) and their respective assigns, affiliates, subsidiaries, parents, predecessors and
successors, and the past and present shareholders, employees, officers, directors, partners, members, managers, trustees, agents (in their official and individual
capacities), employee benefit plans and their administrators and fiduciaries (in their official and individual capacities), representatives and agents or any of them,
and each of their affiliates, successors and assigns (collectively, the “Releasees™), of, from and against any and all claims, demands, damages, rights, judgments,
debts, dues, defenses, actions, suits, charges or causes of action whatsoever, of any and every kind, nature and description, whether known or unknown, accrued
or not accrued, in law or in equity, that the Executive ever had, now has or shall or may have or assert as of the date of this Agreement relating to or arising out of
events or circumstances occurring on or before the date hereof against any of the Releasees, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any
claims, demands, damages, rights, judgments, debts, dues, defenses, actions, suits, charges or causes of action arising out of or related to the Executive’s
employment or termination of employment, or any term or condition of that employment, or that arise out of or relate in any way to any Federal, state or local
statutory and common laws, including but not limited to the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (“ADEA,” a law that prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age), the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act, the National Labor Relations Act, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Americans With Disabilities Act of
1990, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, the Family and Medical Leave Act, the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, all as amended, and any other Federal, state and local laws relating to discrimination on the basis of age, sex or other protected class, all claims
under Federal, state or local laws for express or implied breach of contract, wrongful discharge, defamation, intentional infliction of emotional distress, and any
related claims for attorneys’ fees and costs. The Executive further agrees that this Agreement may be pleaded as a full defense to any action, suit, arbitration or
other proceeding covered by the terms hereof which is or may be initiated, prosecuted or maintained by the Executive, the Executive’s descendants, dependents,
heirs. executors, administrators or permitted assigns. By signing this Release, Executive acknowledges that he intends to waive and release any rights known or
unknown that he may have against the Releasees under these and any other laws; provided, that Executive does
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not waive or release claims with respect to (i) the right to enforce this Agreement or (ii) vested benefits under employee benefit plans of the Company and its
subsidiaries and affiliates (collectively, the “Unreleased Claims”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive does not release, discharge or waive any rights to
indemnification (including under this Release of this Agreement) that he may have under the certificate of incorporation, the by-laws or equivalent governing
documents of the Company or its subsidiaries or affiliates, the laws of the State of Delaware or any other state of which such subsidiary or affiliate is a
domiciliary, or any indemnification agreement between Executive and the Company, or any rights to insurance coverage under any directors’ and officers’
personal liability insurance or fiduciary insurance policy.

B. The Executive acknowledges that he has not filed any complaint, charge, claim or proceeding, except with respect to an Unreleased Claim, if any,
against any of the Releasees before any local, state or federal agency, court or other body relating to his employment or the termination thereof (each individually
a “Proceeding”).

C. The Executive (i) acknowledges that he will not initiate or cause to be initiated on his behalf any Proceeding and will not participate in any Proceeding,
in each case, except as required by law; and (ii) waives any right he may have to benefit in any manner from any relief (whether monetary or otherwise) arising
out of any Proceeding, including any Proceeding conducted by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”). Further, the Executive understands
that by entering into this Agreement, he will be limiting the availability of certain remedies that he may have against the Company and also limiting his ability to
pursue certain claims against the Releasees. Notwithstanding the above, nothing in this Release shall prevent the Executive from (i) initiating or causing to be
initiated on his behalf any complaint, charge, claim or proceeding against the Company before any local, state or Federal agency, court or other body challenging
the validity of the waiver of his claims under ADEA contained in this Release of this Agreement (but no other portion of such waiver); or (ii) initiating or
participating in an investigation or proceeding conducted by the EEOC with respect to ADEA.

D. The Executive acknowledges that he has been given twenty-one (21) days from the date of receipt of this Agreement to consider all the provisions of
this Agreement and he does hereby knowingly and voluntarily waive the balance of said given twenty-one (21) day period. THE EXECUTIVE FURTHER
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HE HAS READ THIS AGREEMENT CAREFULLY, HAS BEEN ADVISED BY THE COMPANY TO CONSULT AN
ATTORNEY, AND FULLY UNDERSTANDS THAT BY SIGNING BELOW HE IS GIVING UP CERTAIN RIGHTS WHICH HE MAY HAVE TO
SUE OR ASSERT A CLAIM AGAINST ANY OF THE RELEASEES, AS DESCRIBED IN THIS RELEASE AND THE OTHER PROVISIONS
HEREOF. THE EXECUTIVE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HE HAS NOT BEEN FORCED OR PRESSURED IN ANY MANNER WHATSOEVER TO
SIGN THIS AGREEMENT AND THE EXECUTIVE AGREES TO ALL OF ITS TERMS VOLUNTARILY.

E. The Executive shall have seven days from the date of his execution of this Agreement to revoke this Agreement, including the release given under this
Release with respect to all claims referred to herein (including, without limitation, any and all claims arising under ADEA). If not revoked within such seven-day
period, this Agreement shall become effective on
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the eighth day following the Executive’s execution of this Agreement. If the Executive revokes this Agreement during such seven-day period, the Executive will
be deemed not to have accepted the terms of this Agreement, and the Company shall not have any obligation to provide the Executive with any of the payments
or benefits under Section 2B of the Separation Agreement.

F. In partial consideration of Executive’s agreements and covenants under the Separation Agreement, the Company, on its own behalf and on behalf of each
member of the Company Group, does hereby covenant not to sue or pursue any litigation (or file any charge or otherwise correspond with any Federal, state or
local administrative agency), arbitration or other proceeding against, and waive, release, acquit and forever discharge, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the
Executive, the Executive’s descendants, dependents, heirs, executors and administrators and permitted assigns, past and present (the “Executive Releasees”), of,
from and against any and all claims, demands, damages, rights, judgments, debts, dues, defenses, actions, suits, charges or causes of action whatsoever, of any
and every kind, nature and description (other than for fraud, gross negligence or willful misconduct), whether known or unknown, accrued or not accrued, in law
or in equity, that any member of the Company Group ever had, now has or shall or may have or assert as of the date of this Agreement relating to or arising out of
events or circumstances occurring on or before the date hereof against any of the Executive Releasees, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing,
any claims, demands, damages, rights, judgments, debts, dues, defenses, actions, suits, charges or causes of action arising out of or related to the Executive’s
employment or termination of employment;_provided, that the foregoing does not waive or release claims with respect to the right to enforce this Agreement, the
Separation Agreement or the Offer Letter, or the terms of any compensation arrangements or any indemnification arrangements for the benefit of or involving the
Executive to which any member of the Company Group is a party. The Company further agrees that this Agreement may be pleaded as a full defense to any
action, suit, arbitration or other proceeding covered by the terms hereof which is or may be initiated, prosecuted or maintained by the Company.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Release on the date specified below.
EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.
By:

Name:
Title:

EXECUTIVE

Matthew Appel

Date
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Exhibit 10.3
EXECUTION VERSION

March 10, 2009

Mr. Matthew Appel
5055 Shoreline Drive
Frisco, TX 75034

Dear Matt:

This letter agreement amends the Separation Agreement, dated October 10, 2008, by and between ExlService Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) and you (the
“Separation Agreement”). Any defined terms used and not otherwise defined in this letter agreement will have the meaning set forth in the Separation Agreement.

1. The Company and you hereby agree that, notwithstanding the terms of Section 1 of the Separation Agreement, your employment and any and all
appointments you hold with the Company Group will continue beyond March 16, 2009 and will cease as of May 15, 2009. References in this letter, and in the
Separation Agreement, to the Termination Date will be deemed to refer to May 15, 2009, except with respect to Sections 1(b) and 2B of the Separation
Agreement.

2. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this letter agreement shall modify your rights to receive payments that you earn pursuant to the provisions of
Section 2B of the Separation Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein.

3. (a) While you remain employed by the Company, you will continue to receive your Base Salary as in effect on the date hereof, payable in accordance
with the Company’s regular payroll policies, and continue to participate in the Company’s employee benefit plans and programs in accordance with their terms.

(b) Subject to (i) your continued employment through May 15, 2009, (ii) your achievement of a performance rating of at least 3 on the 5 point scale of the
Company’s appraisal process (provided that for this purpose such performance shall be measured against performance goals to be mutually agreed between the
Company and you for the remaining period of employment through the Termination Date), (iii) the filing of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the calendar quarter ended March 31, 2009 and (iv) your execution and delivery (at any time during the 60-day period commencing May 15, 2009) of an effective
release of claims that is substantially in the form that was attached to the Separation Agreement (but modified to refer to this letter agreement, and to provide that
your right to revoke such release of claims shall apply only with respect to claims under ADEA), the Company will provide you with a lump sum cash payment in
an amount equal to $31,000 (“Special Prorata Bonus”). The Special Prorata Bonus will be payable on (x) May 15, 2009, if the release of claims is provided on or
prior to such date or (y) otherwise within 7 days following the execution and delivery of the release of claims. For clarity, the Special Prorata Bonus is in addition
to any payments that you may become entitled to receive pursuant to Section 2B of the Separation Agreement.




4. The Company will reimburse you for temporary housing expenses you incur during the period from May 1, 2009 through the Termination Date in the
amount of $2,047.50. Moreover, to the extent you are required to cancel, modify, reschedule or postpone any activities set forth on Schedule A hereto as a result
of continuation of your employment beyond the originally scheduled Termination Date (March 16, 2009), the Company will promptly reimburse you for the
nonrefundable or incremental expenses or penalties you incur with respect to such activities in the respective amounts set forth therein, provided that you provide
the Company with documentation of such expenses or penalties no later than May 31, 2009. The Company will reimburse you for such expenses and penalties as
soon as practicable after you submit such documentation.

5. Except as specifically amended by this letter agreement, the Separation Agreement shall remain unaffected and in full force and effect.

6. This letter agreement is the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains all agreements, whether written,
oral, express or implied, between the parties relating thereto and supersedes and extinguishes any other agreement relating thereto, whether written, oral, express
or implied, between the parties; provided that no rights or obligations established under any such superseded agreement and specifically preserved by this letter
agreement are extinguished; provided, further, that nothing in this letter agreement shall supersede or extinguish the parties’ obligations under the Employee Offer
Letter, dated February 22, 2007, from the Company to you, except as otherwise specifically provided in this letter agreement. This letter agreement shall be
governed by, and interpreted in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York, without regard to the conflict of law provisions of any jurisdiction which
would cause the application of any law other than that of the State of New York.

EXLSERVICE HOLDINGS, INC.

/s/  Rohit Kapoor

Rohit Kapoor
President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Matthew Appel
Matthew Appel




Schedule A

Specifically Reimbursable Expenses

1. Airfare from Dallas to New York on March 23, 2009 in the amount of $129.60.

2. Modification costs related to air travel commencing on May 15, 2009 related to a personal trip to Scotland in the amount of $250.



EXHIBIT 31.1

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Vikram Talwar, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report of ExlService Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(@

(b)

©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

@

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: May 11, 2009

/S/ VIKRAM TALWAR

Vikram Talwar
Executive Chairman




EXHIBIT 31.2

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Rohit Kapoor, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report of ExlService Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(@

(b)

©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

@

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: May 11, 2009

/S/ ROHIT KAPOOR

Rohit Kapoor
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.3

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Matthew Appel, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report of ExlService Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(@

(b)

©

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

@

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: May 11, 2009

/S| MATTHEW APPEL

Matthew Appel
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of ExlService Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2009 as filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Vikram Talwar, Executive Chairman of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(a) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/S/ VIKRAM TALWAR

Vikram Talwar
Executive Chairman

Date: May 11, 2009



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of ExlService Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2009 as filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Rohit Kapoor, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(a) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/S/ ROHIT KAPOOR

Rohit Kapoor
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: May 11, 2009



Exhibit 32.3
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Quarterly Report of ExlService Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ending March 31, 2009 as filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Matthew Appel, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(a) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
(b) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/S| MATTHEW APPEL

Matthew Appel
Chief Financial Officer

Date: May 11, 2009



